
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

March 28, 2018 

Closed  Session 6:30PM  Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

March 28, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CLOSED  SESSION   

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Item  

1D. Closed Session  
Conference with Real Property Negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54956.8. 

Property under review:  006-066-027-000  

Negotiating parties:  Edward F. Marson 

Under negotiation:  Price and terms of payment 
 

2. CALL TO  ORD ER  

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Report from Closed Session 

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

2D. Roll Call 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time to consider changes to the agenda including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 
 

3. PRESEN TATION S 

3A. Maidu Village Concept Plan 

Jeff Bordelon, Representative for Development 

3B. Sewer Rate Study Findings 

Mary Fleming and  Karen McBride, RCAC Rural Development Specialist  
 

4. CON SEN T CALEN D AR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an  

item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

4A. Minutes ï Regular meeting March 14, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 14, 2018. 

4B. Cash Summary ï February 2018 

Recommendation:  Receive and  file. 

4C. City Manager authorization to request Federal/State Funds for Pond III Fissure repairs  

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 17-2018 designating the City Manager as 

authorized  agent to execute and  file applications with the California Governorôs Office of 

Emergency Service for the purpose of obtaining federal financial assistance and/ or state 

financial assistance. 



http://www.colfax-ca.gov/
















4 of 10













ITEM  4B









Cal OES 89 (Rev.02/17) (Page 1 of 3) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA Disaster No: 
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
Cal OES 89 Cal OES ID No:    

 
DUNS No:    

 
 

PROJECT ASSURANCES FOR FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 
 
 

SUBRECIPIENT’S NAME:  
     (Name of Organization) 

 

ADDRESS:  
 

CITY:    STATE:   ZIP CODE:    
 

TELEPHONE:    FAX NUMBER:    
 

AUTHORIZED AGENT:   TITLE:    
 

EMAIL ADDRESS:    
 

ASSURANCES – CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 
 

Note:     Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to all of your projects. If you have questions, please contact the California 
Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. Further, certain federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to 
certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

 
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the subrecipient named above: 

 
1. Has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including 

funds sufficient to pay the non-federal share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the 
project described in this application. 

 
2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the Unites States, Federal Office of Inspector General 2 CFR 

200.336, and if appropriate, the state, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, 
books, papers, or documents related to the assistance; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title, or other interest in the site and facilities 

without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the federal interest in the title of real property in 
accordance with awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in 
part with federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of the project. 

 
4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance-awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and approval of 

construction plans and specifications. 
 

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure that the 
complete work conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish progress reports and such other 
information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or state. 

 
6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 

 
7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the 

appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gains. 
 

8. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4801 et seq.), which prohibits the use of 
lead based pain in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









2 

 

intersections, not one. Installing traffic signals at three intersections is cost-prohibitive. The proposed 
roundabout will adequately mitigate the anticipated traffic impacts. 
 
The owner of the Maidu Village property proposes to develop it to include a gas station, sit-down 
restaurant, fast food restaurant, motel, and commercial building. The general layout of that proposed 
development is shown on the attached Preliminary Layout.  
 
Developing the Maidu Village property will require the developer to construct various road frontage 
improvements along South Auburn Street. Those improvements are generally shown in green on the 
attached Preliminary Layout. The estimated cost of constructing the frontage improvements is $240,000. It 
is impractical for the City to build the roundabout and the developer to separately install the frontage 
improvements. The City and developer have tentatively agreed, therefore, that the City will construct the 
frontage improvements as part of the overall roundabout project construction.  
 
That $240,000 is the first partial source of funds whereby the City will fill the roundabout project funding 
shortfall. Before the Council this evening is a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement whereby, upon 
request from the City, the developer will deposit $240,000 toward the cost of the frontage improvements. 
The City will be permitted to expend up to $150,000 of that deposit for the design of the roundabout 
project. Staff is satisfied that $150,000 will provide sufficient funding to complete roundabout design. 
 
Under ordinary circumstances, the developer would not be expected to advance funds toward a project 
until a development is approved and entitled. In this instance, the developer is willing to advance funds 
without first receiving project entitlements, so the roundabout project can move forward. 
 
The proposed agreement provides that the City will proceed with design, engineering, financing, 
permitting, supervising and constructing the roundabout project. The developer will advance the needed 
$240,000, $150,000 of which can be spent on the roundabout project pending negotiation of a 
development agreement that will commit the City to processing the developer’s project approvals.  
 
The agreement allows the City and developer 120 days to negotiate a development agreement. If that is 
not successful, or if roundabout construction does not begin by July 1, 2019, the City will be required to 
refund the entire $240,000 advance, plus accrued interest. If the City does not have sufficient funds with 
which to do so, it can refund the advance with a promissory note fully amortized over two years, with 
interest at the rate of 3%. The developer can elect to apply the deposit to development fees applicable to 
developing the Maidu Village property in lieu of accepting a cash refund or promissory note.  
 
This is a risky transaction for both the City and the developer. Although the City and developer anticipate 
that the roundabout will be constructed, and the Maidu Village property will receive development 
entitlements, either or both possibilities may fail. If failure happens, the City will be burdened with repaying 
an advance with funds it does not have and will have to raise, the developer may be burdened with 
property for which development is prohibitively expensive, and traffic congestion issues will still have to be 
addressed. Moreover, the $2,150,000 in grant funds currently available to the City will be lost and allocated 
to other agencies.  
 
If this series of transactions is successful, the roundabout will be built, traffic congestion issues will be 
mitigated, and the Maidu Village property will become instantly developable. This will be accomplished 
with grant funds so the overall cost to the City will be minimal. Council must determine whether the overall 

ITEM  7A



3 

 

benefit of project success outweighs the risk of project failure, and whether the proposed agreement is in 
the City’s best interests.  
 
The $240,000 advance is not sufficient to cover the entire approximately $450,000 roundabout funding 
shortfall.  There are three other potential sources of funding being explored by the City and the developer: 
 
1. The Maidu Village development is estimated to generate $200,000 in road mitigation fees. The City 
and developer will be negotiating the conditions under which the developer will advance those fees as part 
of the development agreement negotiations.  
 
2. The Maidu Village developer would likely have to install as many as three traffic signals to develop 
its project. The City and developer are negotiating a “fair share” payment whereby the developer will pay 
the City approximately $235,000 in lieu of having to signalize any intersection. This is being negotiated as 
part of the development agreement. 
 
3. The City needs to acquire a portion of the Maidu Village property to construct the roundabout. The 
property the City needs has an estimated net value of $32,000.  The City is negotiating a credit for the value 
of that property as part of the development agreement. 
 
The City does not need to immediately fill the entire funding shortfall, so staff has been negotiating phased 
contributions from the developer. The developer has suggested depositing $240,000 upon request by the 
City as part of the proposed agreement before the Council, a second deposit upon approval of the 
anticipated development agreement, and a final deposit upon commencement of roundabout construction.  
 
Staff will be available to answer Council’s questions.  
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 19-2018 
2. Agreement 
3. Exhibits A-D 

 

ITEM  7A



















MARCH 21, 2018 DRAFT 

 

(c) If delivered by facsimile transmission, a Notice shall be deemed to have been 

given upon receipt of the entire document by the receiving Party's facsimile machine as shown 

by the transmission report issued by the transmitting facsimile machine. Notice transmitted after 

5 p.m. or on Saturday or Sunday shall be deemed to have been given on the next business day. 

 

(d) If delivered by regular U.S. mail, a Notice shall be deemed to have been given 

five (5) calendar days after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service. 

 

Notices shall be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

 

City:  City Clerk 

 City of Colfax 

 P.O. Box 702 

 Colfax, CA 95713 

 Telephone: (530) 346-2313 

 Facsimile:  (530) 346-6214 

 

With a  

copy to: City Attorney, City of Colfax 

 Alfred A. Cabral  

 Pelletreau, Alderson & Cabral 

 P.O. Box 1000 

 Grass Valley, CA 95945 

 Telephone: (510) 262-2100 

 Facsimile:  (530) 478-0368  

 

Developer: 

 Jaskaran ñJayò Gill 

 _______________ 

 _______________ 

 _______________ 

 

Any Party may change its mailing address or contact person(s) at any time by giving written 

notice of such change to the other Party in the manner provided herein at least ten (10) days prior 

to the date such change is effected. 

 

6.2  Form and Effect of Notice.  Every Notice (other than the giving or withholding of 

consent, approval or satisfaction under this Agreement but including requests therefor) given to a 

Party shall comply with the following requirements. Each such Notice shall state: (i) the Section 

of this Agreement pursuant to which the Notice is given; (ii) the period of time within which the 

recipient of the notice must respond or if no response is required, a statement to that effect; and 

(iii) if applicable, that the failure to respond to the notice within the stated time period shall be 

deemed to be the equivalent of the recipient's approval of or consent to the subject matter of the 

Notice. Each request for consent or approval shall contain reasonably sufficient data or 

documentation to enable the recipient to make an informed decision. In no event shall notice be 

deemed given nor shall a Party's approval of, consent to, or satisfaction with, the subject matter 

ITEM  7A
12 of 19









AutoCAD SHX Text
HANSEN BROTHERS ENTERPRISES PARCEL 2 29/PM/104 O.R.P.C. 44 CENTRAL STREET 006-141-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 100-240-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCDONALDS CORPORATION 501 AUBURN ST 100-240-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEQUOIA WCL INVESTMENTS LLC PLC B 27/PM/68 O.R..P.C. 555 AUBURN STREET 100-230-048

AutoCAD SHX Text
598 RAILROAD AVE 100-240-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
333 AUBURN ST 100-240-015

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLFAX AUBURN LLC PORTION OF PAR A  17/PM/107 O.R.P.C. DOC 2017-R0009520

AutoCAD SHX Text
400 AUBURN ST 006-144-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
404 AUBURN ST 100-240-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
424 AUBURN ST 100-240-008

AutoCAD SHX Text
504 AUBURN ST 100-230-058

AutoCAD SHX Text
520 AUBURN ST 100-230-059

AutoCAD SHX Text
550 AUBURN ST 100-230-060

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 AUBURN ST 006-141-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
309 AUBURN ST 006-141-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
303 AUBURN ST 006-141-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
44 CENTRAL STREET 006-141-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
110 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-047

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
308 AUBURN ST 006-143-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
300 AUBURN ST 006-143-013

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 HWY 174 006-143-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
006-143-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
320 AUBURN ST 006-143-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
323 HWY 174 006-143-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
313 HWY 174 006-143-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
301 HWY 174 006-143-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
130 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-057

AutoCAD SHX Text
152 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-054

AutoCAD SHX Text
123 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-045

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-051

AutoCAD SHX Text
 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-022

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
683 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-005

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-011

AutoCAD SHX Text
615 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD AVE 100-160-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
603 RAILROAD AVE 100-160-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
139 WHITCOMB AVE 100-230-008

AutoCAD SHX Text
681 CORTO PASSI LN 100-230-052

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 100-240-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 305 RAILROAD AVE 006-131-009

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-80 CALTRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITCOMB AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 135

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. AUBURN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANYON WAY





EXHIBIT C ITEM  7A
18 of 19



EXHIBIT D

Quant/ Unit Unit Cost Cost

Grading 1 ls 10,000$ 10,000$ Allowance no design available

Stamped HMA 745 sf 28$ 20,860$ Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg Road/Entry 3845 sf 25$ 96,125$ Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg curb/gutter 570 lf 32$ 18,240$ Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

4th Leg Sidewalk 50% City/Developer 2352 sf 15$ 35,280$ Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

Rt turn pocket 2563 sf 25$ 64,075$ Based on Conceptual Roundabout Design

Signs & Pavement Markings 1 ls 1 5,000$ Allowance no design available

Subtotal π Developer Road Improvements 239,580$     Previous Estimate $215k

Drainage 1 ls 15,000$ 15,000$ Allowance no design available

Waterline 1 ls 20,000$ 20,000$ Allowance no design available

Sewer 1 ls 10,000$ 10,000$ Allowance no design available

Subtotal π Developer Utilities 45,000$       

Developer Improvements in Public Right of Way 275,000$     

Maidu Village Travel Center π Estimate of Developer Improvements in Public Right of Way

Rev 2/27/2018

ITEM  7A
19 of 19



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE MARCH 28, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer  
DATE: March 28, 2018 

SUBJECT: Caltrans Cooperative Agreement for Federal Transportation Funds for the S. 
Auburn St. and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

 

X N/A    FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 19-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans under the State Highway Operations and Protection Program 
(SHOPP) for the S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project. 

 
BACKROUND AND DISCUSSION:  

The City of Colfax periodically receives State and Federal grants for transportation related projects 

which are administered through the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  Current 

master agreements between the City and Caltrans are required in order for the City to receive 

reimbursement for grant funded transportation project expenses.   

Caltrans uses an agreement called a Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement 

for Federal-Aid Projects (Master Agreement) with local agencies such as the City of Colfax. On 

February 28, the City entered into this agreement under Resolution 11-2018.  

Under the umbrella of a Master Agreement, Caltrans uses Program Supplement Agreements that 

are specific to individual projects. The City recently received approval for $2.15M in Caltrans 

administered grants for the S. Auburn Roundabout Project.  In order to begin invoicing for 

reimbursement for the Project, a Program Supplement Agreement between the City and Caltrans 

must be executed.  

On January 17, 2018 the City Engineer requested funding contributions of the $1.25M from the 

State Highway Operations and Protection Program (SHOPP) and also requested authority to take 

the lead on all phases of the project.  Caltrans has agreed to the City’s request.  On March 2, 

2018, Caltrans provided the City with a Cooperative Agreement formalizing the terms for the City’s 

role as lead agency and providing the City with up to $1.25M in state funding towards the project.  

A copy of the Cooperative Agreement is included as Attachment 2. 

























































29 of 36





31 of 36












	00A 180328 Agenda
	04A 180314 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary February
	2018-08 Staff Report Cash Summary Feb 2018
	180328 Cash Summary Data

	04C CalOES Designation for Pond III FEMA
	170809 SR CalOES Pond 3
	Resolution 17-2018 complete
	Resolution 17-2018 CalOES application authorization.pdf

	CalOES 89 completed

	07A Maidu Village Road Improvement Agreement
	180320bh_Staff Report
	Resolution 18-2018 Maidu Road Improvement
	180321eh_Deposit Agreement Rev 4
	180313eh_Exhibit A
	Sheets and Views
	Exhibit A - 11x17


	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	180313hh_Exhibit D Cost Estimate

	07B COOP Agreement Catrans re Maidu
	Staff Report - State Highway Operation and Protection Program Cooperative  Agreement Feb 28 2018
	Resolution 19-2018
	180328 Coop Agreement for Maidu


	PRINT: 
	RESET: 
	Disaster No: #4301
	Cal OES ID No: 061-14498
	DUNS No: 004949152
	SUBRECIPIENTS NAME: City of Colfax
	ADDRESS: PO Box 702/33 S. Main Street
	CITY: Colfax
	STATE: CA
	ZIP CODE: 95713
	TELEPHONE: 530-346-2313
	FAX NUMBER: 530-346-6214
	AUTHORIZED AGENT: Wes Heathcock
	TITLE: City Manager
	EMAIL ADDRESS: wes.heathcock@colfax-ca.gov
	PRINTED NAME: Wes Heathcock
	TITLE_2: City Manager
	DATE: 


